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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” as defined under United States federal securities laws. These statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause the Company’s actual results, performance, or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance, or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements about:

 
 ● the Company’s ability to market, commercialize, and achieve broader market acceptance for its products;
   
 ● the Company’s ability to successfully expand and achieve full productivity from its sales, clinical support, and marketing capabilities;
   
 ● the Company’s ability to successfully complete the development of, and obtain regulatory clearance or approval for its products; and
   
 ● the estimates regarding the sufficiency of the Company’s cash resources, the ability to obtain additional capital, or the ability to maintain or grow sources of

revenue.
 

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,”
“predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “will,” “would,” and similar expressions intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking statements contain
these words. Although the Company believes that it has a reasonable basis for each forward-looking statement contained in this Quarterly Report, we caution you that these
statements are based on a combination of facts and factors currently known by the Company and its projections of the future, about which it cannot be certain. As a result of
these factors, the Company cannot assure you that the forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report will prove to be accurate. Furthermore, if the forward-looking
statements prove to be inaccurate, the inaccuracy may be material. In light of the significant uncertainties in these forward-looking statements, you should not regard these
statements as a representation or warranty by the Company, or any other person, that it will achieve its objectives and plans in any specified time frame, or at all. The Company
does not undertake to update any of the forward-looking statements after the date of this Quarterly Report, except to the extent required by applicable securities laws.
 

3



 
 
Item 1. Financial Statements

 
H-Cyte, Inc and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

 
  (Unaudited)   
  Sept 30, 2021  December 31, 2020
Assets         
         
Current Assets         

Cash  $ 307,213  $ 1,640,645 
Accounts receivable   9,200   - 
Patient financing receivable, current portion   35,080   - 
Other receivables   551   22,123 
Prepaid expenses   106,228   94,434 

Total Current Assets   458,272   1,757,202 
         
Right-of-use asset   162,207   278,552 
Property and equipment, net   40,344   139,175 
Patient financing receivable, net of current portion   61,547   - 
Other assets   18,412   29,239 
Total assets  $ 740,782  $ 2,204,168 
         
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit         
         
Current Liabilities         

Accounts payable  $ 1,044,727  $ 1,006,968 
Accrued liabilities   187,119   276,415 
Other current liabilities   141,330   154,812 
Notes payable, current portion   67,444   67,444 
Convertible notes payable, related parties   1,584,665   - 
Convertible notes payable   1,091,080   - 
PPP Loan, current portion   105,878   606,811 
Deferred revenue   410,031   634,149 
Lease liability, current portion   92,589   139,189 
Interest payable   4,385   6,898 

Total Current Liabilities   4,729,248   2,892,686 
         
Long-term Liabilities         

Lease liability, net of current portion   87,304   157,050 
PPP Loan, net of current portion   -   202,271 

Total Long-term Liabilities   87,304   359,321 
         
Total Liabilities   4,816,552   3,252,007 
         
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)         

Preferred Stock - $.001 par value: 1,000,000,000 shares authorized; Series A Preferred Stock - $.001 par
value: 800,000,000 shares authorized, 515,874,354 and 538,109,409 shares issued and outstanding at
September 30, 2021 and, December 31, 2020, respectively   515,874   538,109 
Common stock - $.001 par value: 1,600,000,000 shares authorized, 149,394,519 and 127,159,464 shares
issued and outstanding at September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively   149,394   127,159 
Additional paid-in capital   43,540,358   42,515,999 
Accumulated deficit   (47,911,264)   (43,858,974)
Non-controlling interest   (370,132)   (370,132)

Total Stockholders’ Deficit   (4,075,770)   (1,047,839)
         
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit  $ 740,782  $ 2,204,168 

 
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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H-Cyte, Inc and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

 
  Three Months Ended Sept 30,  Nine Months Ended Sept 30,
  2021  2020  2021  2020

         
Revenues  $ 460,216  $ 649,892  $ 1,286,841  $ 1,686,168 
Cost of Sales   (138,786)   (161,252)   (553,454)   (608,079)
Gross Profit   321,430   488,640   733,387   1,078,089 
                 
Operating Expenses                 

Salaries and related costs   534,752   606,294   1,782,646   2,425,094 
Share based compensation   162,359   -   1,024,359   643 
Loss on disposal of property and equipment   -    -   92,804   - 
Other general and administrative   789,365   542,317   2,229,120   2,806,707 
Research and development   3,285   201,658   3,285   1,151,658 
Advertising   58,643   51,643   223,871   222,196 
Depreciation and amortization   300   30,095   13,859   69,447 

Total Operating Expenses   1,548,704   1,432,007   5,369,944   6,675,745 
                 
Operating Loss   (1,227,274)   (943,367)   (4,636,557)   (5,597,656)
                 
Other Income (Expense)                 

Forgiveness of PPP loan   698,820   -   698,820   - 
Gain on extinguishment of debt   -   -   -   1,300,088 
Interest expense   (50,516)   (1,039,349)   (110,446)   (1,458,521)
Other income (expense)   (7,641)   (34,504)   (4,107)   (25,182)
Change in fair value of redemption put liability   -   97,997   -   272,705 
Loss on derivative instrument   -   -   -   (2,306,121)
Warrant modification expense   -   -   -   (70,851)
Change in fair value of derivative liability - warrants   -   5,869,102   -   2,986,853

Total Other Income (Expense)   640,663   4,893,246   584,267   698,971
                 
Net Income (Loss)  $ (586,611)  $ 3,949,879  $ (4,052,290)  $ (4,898,685)
                 
Accrued dividends on outstanding Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock   -   7,856   -   44,456 
Deemed dividend on Series D Convertible Preferred Stock   -   36,450   -   277,719 
Net Income (Loss) attributable to common stockholders  $ (586,611)  $ 3,905,573  $ (4,052,290)  $ (5,220,860)
             
Net Income (Loss) per share                 
Basic  $ (0.00)  $ 0.03  $ (0.03)  $ (0.05)
Diluted  $ (0.00)  $ 0.01  $ (0.03)  $ (0.05)
                 
Weighted average outstanding shares - basic   142,407,798   116,970,322   140,074,271   106,691,185 
Weighted average outstanding shares - diluted   142,407,798    664,244,972   140,074,271   106,691,185 

 
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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H-Cyte, Inc and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2021
 

                               

Three months ended  Preferred Series A Stock   
Preferred Series B

Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

 Paid-in   Accumulated   
Non-

controlling   
Total

 Stockholders’  
September 30, 2020 and 2021  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Capital   Deficit   Interest   Deficit  
Balances - June 30, 2020                                               -  $ -   6,100  $ 6   104,246,357  $ 104,246  $ 27,761,076  $ (46,248,302)  $ (370,132)  $       (18,753,106)
                                        
Conversion of Series B Preferred Stock to Common Stock   -   -    (6,100)   (6)   2,119,713   2,120   150,983   -   -   153,097 
Accrued dividends on Series B Preferred Stock   -   -   -   -   -   -   (7,856)   -   -   (7,856)
Deemed dividend on Series D Preferred Stock   -   -   -   -   -   -   (36,450)   -   -   (36,450)
Conversion of Short-term convertible notes to Preferred Stock   287,984,337   287,984   -   -   -   -   4,751,484   -   -   5,039,468 
Conversion of related party warrants to equity   -   -   -   -   -   -   107,123   -   -   107,123 
Conversion of Series D Preferred Stock to Common Stock   -   -   -   -   15,773,363   15,773   6,422,441   -   -   6,438,214 
Reclassification of Series B warrants to Common Stock   -   -   -   -   -   -   73,805   -   -   73,805 
Reclassification of Series D warrants to Common Stock   -   -   -   -   -   -   337,400   -   -   337,400 
Issuance of Series A Preferred Stock in Rights Offering   218,285,024   218,285   -   -   -   -   2,517,451   -   -   2,735,736 
Conversion of Short-term related party convertible notes to
Preferred Stock   35,860,079   35,860   -   -   -   -   412,541   -   -   448,401 
Net loss   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   3,949,879   -   3,949,879 
Balances – September 30, 2020   542,129,440  $ 542,129   -  $ -   122,139,433  $ 122,139  $ 42,489,998  $ (42,298,423)  $ (370,132)  $ 485,711 

 

  Preferred Series A Stock   
Preferred Series B

Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

 Paid-in   Accumulated   
Non-

controlling   
Total

Stockholders’  
  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Capital   Deficit   Interest   Deficit  

Balances - June 30, 2021   520,305,884  $ 520,305       -   -   144,962,989  $ 144,963  $ 43,377,999  $ (47,324,653)  $ (370,132)  $ (3,651,518)
Share based compensation   -   -   -   -   -   -   162,359   -   -   162,359 
Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock to common stock   (4,431,530)   (4,431)   -   -   4,431,530   4,431   -   -   -   - 
Net Loss   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (586,611)   -   (586,611)
Balances – September 30, 2021   515,874,354  $ 515,874   -   -   149,394,519  $ 149,394  $ 43,540,358  $ (47,911,264) $(370,132) $ (4,075,770)
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Nine months ended  Preferred Series A Stock   
Preferred Series B

Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-in   Accumulated   
Non-

controlling   
Total

Stockholders’  

September 30, 2020 and 2021  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   
 

Capital   Deficit   Interest   Deficit  
Balances - December 31, 2019                                             -  $ -   6,100  $ 6   99,768,704  $ 99,769  $ 28,172,145  $ (37,362,531)  $ (370,132)  $ (9,460,743)
Accrued dividends on Series B Preferred Stock   -   -   -   -   -   -   (44,456)   -   -   (44,456)
Adjustment of exercise price on certain warrants   -   -   -   -   -   -   (438,913)   -   -   (438,913)
Reclassification of Series B warrants to equity   -   -   -   -   -   -   73,805   -   -   73,805 
Reclassification of Series D warrants to equity   -   -   -   -   -   -   337,400   -   -   337,400 
Conversion of Series B Preferred Stock   -   -   (6,100)   (6)   2,119,713   2,120   150,983   -   -   153,097 
Conversion of Series D Preferred Stock to Common Stock   -   -   -   -   15,773,363   15,773   6,422,441   -   -   6,438,214 
Conversion of Short-term related party convertible notes to
Preferred Stock   35,860,079   35,860   -   -   -   -   412,541   -   -   448,401 
Issuance of Common Stock in connection with extinguishment of
short term notes, related parties   -   -   -   -   4,368,278   4,368   214,046   -   -   218,414 
Deemed dividend on Series D Preferred Stock   -   -   -   -   -   -   (277,719)   -   -   (277,719)
Deemed dividend on Series D Preferred Stock at issuance   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (37,207)   -   (37,207)
Conversion of related party warrants to equity   -   -   -   -   -   -   107,123   -   -   107,123 
Issuance of Common Stock in exchange for consulting fees
incurred   -   -   -   -   109,375  109   34,891   -   -   35,000 
Issuance of warrants pursuant to private placement of Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock   -   -   -   -   -   -   31,902   -   -   31,902 
Conversion of short-term convertible notes to Preferred Stock   287,984,337   287,984   -   -   -   -   4,751,484   -   -   5,039,468 
Issuance of warrants pursuant to extension of convertible short-
term notes   -   -   -   -   -   -   17,636   -   -   17,636 
Issuance of warrants pursuant to extension of maturity date on
convertible debt   -   -   -   -   -   -   6,595   -   -   6,595 
Issuance of Series A Preferred Stock in Rights Offering   218,285,024   218,285   -   -   -   -   2,517,451   -   -   2,735,736 
Share based compensation   -   -   -   -   -   -   643   -   -   643 
Net loss   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (4,898,685)   -   (4,898,685)
Balances – September 30, 2020   542,129,440  $ 542,129   -  $ -   122,139,433  $ 122,139  $ 42,489,998  $ (42,298,423)  $ (370,132)  $ 485,711 

 

  Preferred Series A Stock   
Preferred Series B

Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-in   Accumulated   
Non-

controlling   
Total

Stockholders’  

  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   
 

Capital   Deficit   Interest   
 

Deficit  
Balances - December 31, 2020   538,109,409  $ 538,109   -  $      -   127,159,464  $ 127,159  $ 42,515,999  $ (43,858,974)  $ (370,132)  $ (1,047,839)
Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock to common stock   (22,235,055)   (22,235)   -   -   22,235,055   22,235   -   -   -   - 
Share based compensation   -   -   -   -   -   -   1,024,359   -   -   1,024,359 
Net loss   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (4,052,290)   -   (4,052,290)
Balances – September 30, 2021   515,874,354  $ 515,874   -  $ -   149,394,519  $ 149,394  $ 43,540,358  $ (47,911,264)  $ (370,132)  $ (4,075,770)
 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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H-Cyte, Inc and Subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

 
  Nine Months Ended Sept 30,  
  2021   2020  
Cash Flows from Operating Activities         

Net loss  $ (4,052,290)  $ (4,898,685)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:         

Depreciation and amortization   13,859   69,447 
Amortization of debt discount   -   1,395,007 
Forgiveness of PPP loan   (698,820)   - 
Issuance of warrants to extend convertible debt   -   17,636 
Issuance of warrants pursuant to short-term notes, related party   -   (1,300,088)
Issuance of warrants to extend short-term debt   -   6,595 
Share based compensation expense   1,024,359   643 
Common stock issued for consulting services   -   35,000 
Change in fair value of derivative liability - warrants   -   (2,986,853)
Change in fair value of derivative liability - warrants   -   (272,705)
Change in fair value of derivative liability - Day one derivative loss   -   2,306,121 
Warrant modification expense   -   70,851 
Loss on disposal of property and equipment   92,804   - 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         
Accounts receivable   (9,200)   20,167 
Patient financing receivable, current portion   (35,080)   - 
Other receivables   21,572   16,372 
Patient financing receivable, net of current portion   (61,547)   - 
Prepaid expenses and other assets   (968)   707,457 
Interest payable   6,333   35,565 
Accounts Payable   37,759   (237,409)
Accrued liabilities   (89,296)   (21,206)
Other current liabilities   (13,482)   (15,680) 
Deferred revenue   (224,118)   (409,375)

         
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities   (3,988,115)   (5,461,140)
         
Cash Flows from Investing Activities         

Purchase of property and equipment   (7,832)   (2,285) 
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities   (7,832)   (2,285) 
         
Cash Flows from Financing Activities         

Proceeds from convertible notes payable, related parties   1,584,665   - 
Proceeds from convertible notes payable   1,091,080   - 
Proceeds from PPP loan   -   809,082 
Payments on PPP Loan   (13,230)   (10,937)
Proceeds from warrants, net of issuance costs   -   3,842,695 
Proceeds from issuance of Preferred Stock Series A, net of issuance costs   -   2,735,736 
Proceeds from issuance of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock   -   100,000 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities   2,662,515   7,476,576 
         
Net Change in Cash   (1,333,432)   2,013,151 
         
Cash - Beginning of period   1,640,645   1,424,096 
         
Cash - End of period  $ 307,213  $ 3,437,247 
         
Supplementary Cash Flow Information         
Cash paid for interest  $ 3,367  $ 17,066 
         
Non-cash investing and financing activities         
Deemed Dividend on Series D Convertible Preferred Stock  $ -  $ 314,926 
Conversion of Series D Preferred Stock to Common Stock   -   6,438,214 
Conversion of related party (Horne) warrants to equity   -   107,123 
Reclassification of Series B warrants to equity   -   73,805 
Reclassification of Series D warrants to equity   -   337,400 
Issuance of Common Stock in exchange for consulting fees   -   35,000 
Issuance of warrants to extend short-term debt   -   6,595 
Issuance of warrants pursuant to extension of convertible short-term notes   -   17,636 
Conversion of Series B Preferred Stock to Common Stock   -   153,097 
Conversion of short-term related party convertible notes to Preferred Stock   -   412,541 
Conversion of short-term convertible notes to Preferred Stock   -   4,751,484 
Dividends accrued on Series B Preferred Stock   -   44,456 
Adjustment of exercise price on convertible debt   -   438,913 
Issuance of Common Stock in connection with extinguishment of short-term notes, related parties   -   218,414 
Issuance of Warrants in connection with Series D Convertible Preferred Stock   -   31,902 

 
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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H-CYTE, INC
NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY

 
H-CYTE, Inc (“the Company”) is a hybrid-biopharmaceutical company dedicated to developing and delivering new treatments for patients with chronic respiratory and
pulmonary disorders. During the last two years, the Company has evolved into two separate divisions with its entrance into the biologics development space (“Biologics
Division”). This new division is complementary to the Company’s current Lung Health Institute (LHI) autologous infusion therapy business (“Infusion Division”) and is
focused on underserved disease states. On September 8, 2021, the Company announced that its Lung Health Institute facilities changed its name to Centers for Respiratory
Health as the clinics continue to deliver treatments for patients with chronic respiratory and pulmonary disorders.
 
The consolidated results for H-CYTE include the following wholly-owned subsidiaries: H-CYTE Management, LLC, Medovex Corp, Cognitive Health Institute, LLC, and
Lung Institute Tampa, LLC and the results include Lung Institute Dallas, PLLC (“LI Dallas”), Lung Institute Nashville, PLLC (“LI Nashville”), Lung Institute Pittsburgh,
PLLC (“LI Pittsburgh”), and Lung Institute Scottsdale, LLC (“LI Scottsdale”), as Variable Interest Entities (“VIEs”). Additionally, H-CYTE Management, LLC is the operator
and manager of the various Lung Health Institute (LHI) clinics: LI Dallas, LI Nashville, LI Pittsburgh, and LI Scottsdale. The LI Dallas and LI Pittsburgh clinics did not reopen
in 2020 after the temporary closure of all LI clinics due to COVID-19. These two clinics will remain permanently closed.
 
On September 11, 2020, with the closing of the Rights Offering, FWHC, LLC, FWHC Bridge, LLC, and FWHC Bridge Friends, LLC (collectively known as “FWHC”) gained
control of the Company by subsequently owning approximately 61% of the fully diluted shares of the Company (for further discussion, see Notes 8 and 9-”Equity
Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K).
 
Autologous Infusion Therapy (“Infusion Division”)
 
The Infusion Division develops and implements innovative treatment options in autologous cellular therapy (PRP-PBMC) to treat chronic lung disorders. Committed to an
individualized patient-centric approach, this division provides oversight and management of the highest quality to the LHI clinics, while producing positive medical outcomes
following the strictest Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (the “CDC”) guidelines.
 
Biotech Development (“Biologics Division”)
 
On June 21, 2019, H-CYTE entered into an exclusive product supply agreement with Rion, LLC (“Rion”) to develop and distribute (post U.S. Food & Drug Administration, the
“FDA”, approval) a biologic combining its PRP-PBMC technology with Rion’s exosomes (“EV”) technology for the treatment of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
(“COPD”), the fourth leading cause of death in the U.S. Rion has established a novel EV technology to harness the healing power of the body. Rion’s innovative technology,
based on science developed at Mayo Clinic, provides an off-the-shelf platform to enhance healing in soft tissue, musculoskeletal, cardiovascular, and neurological organ
systems. This agreement provides for a 10-year exclusive and extendable supply agreement with Rion to enable H-CYTE to develop combined proprietary biologics. The
Company is evaluating alternate EV technologies to determine the most favorable path forward.
 
On October 9, 2019, the Company entered into a services agreement with Rion which provides the Company the benefit of Rion’s resources and expertise for the limited
purpose of (i) consulting with and assisting H-CYTE in the further research and development for the generation of a new biologic and (ii) subsequently assisting H-CYTE in
seeking and obtaining FDA Phase 1 IND clearance for this biologic as necessary. Rion has completed the research and development work which is under review by the
Company. The Company is assessing if the Rion combined proprietary biologic is a more viable solution than potentially progressing with a single entity biologic from an
alternative commercial source.
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On April 2, 2021, the Company entered into a series of agreements with Medovex, LLC to pursue a joint venture regarding the continued development and commercialization
of the DenerveX device for business outside of the U.S. The Company has determined that the transactions resulting from the series of agreements with Medovex, LLC are
immaterial. The Company will assess the progress of the joint venture on a quarterly basis for materiality.
 
NOTE 2 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

 
The accompanying interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared based upon U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission rules that permit reduced disclosure for
interim periods. Therefore, they do not include all information and footnote disclosures necessary for a complete presentation of the Company’s financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company filed audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, which included all information and notes necessary for such complete presentation in conjunction with its 2020 Annual Report on
Form 10-K.
 
The results of operations for the interim period ended September 30, 2021 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future period or the entire fiscal
year. These interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020,
which are contained in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K. For further discussion refer to Note 2 – “Basis Of Presentation And Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” to the consolidated financial statements and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations–Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020.

 
NOTE 3 - LIQUIDITY, GOING CONCERN AND MANAGEMENT’S PLANS

 
The Company incurred net losses of approximately $587,000 and $4,052,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021. The Company has historically incurred
losses from operations and expects to continue to generate negative cash flows as it implements its plan around the Biosciences Division. The interim consolidated financial
statements are prepared using accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”) as applicable to a going concern.
 
COVID-19 has adversely affected the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. The impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the economy in the U.S. and the
rest of the world is expected to continue to be significant. The extent to which the COVID-19 outbreak will continue to impact the economy is highly uncertain and cannot be
predicted. Accordingly, the Company cannot predict the extent to which its financial condition and results of operations will be affected.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

 
On April 1, 2021, the Company, entered into a Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (the “April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement”) with five (5) investors (the
“Holders”). Pursuant to the terms of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, the Company sold promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $2,575,000 maturing
on March 31, 2022 with an annual interest rate of 8%. The Notes, plus accrued interest, are convertible into shares of Common Stock at a discount of 20% to the price paid for
such New Securities in the next round of financing that meets the definition of Qualified Financing as defined in the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement. The Notes are
secured by the assets of the Company under a security agreement with the Holders. The lead investor of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, FWHC Bridge, LLC,
advanced $1,500,000 of the total amount to the Company. FWHC Bridge, LLC is an affiliated entity of FWHC, LLC, which is a principal stockholder and related party of the
Company. An additional affiliate of FWHC, LLC provided an additional $25,000 as part of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement.
 
On October 14, 2021, H-Cyte, Inc. (the “Company”) entered into the Second Closing Bring Down Agreement (the “October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement”) whereby the five
(5) investors who had entered into the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement purchased new notes in the Company in the aggregate principal amount of $750,000. The Notes are
due and payable on March 31, 2022 and bear interest at an annual rate of 8%. The Notes are convertible into shares of Common Stock at a discount of 20% to the price paid for
such New Securities in the next financing that meets the definition of a Qualified Financing as defined in the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement. The Notes are secured by
all of the assets of the Company under a security agreement with the Holders. The lead investor of the October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, FWHC Bridge, LLC, advanced
$437,000 of the total amount to the Company. FWHC Bridge, LLC is an affiliated entity of FWHC, LLC, which is a principal stockholder and related party of the Company. An
additional affiliate of FWHC, LLC provided an additional $7,500 as part of the October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement. The Company chose early adoption of ASU 2020-06
Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’s Own Equity effective January 1, 2021 related to the April 2021 and October 2021 Note Purchase
Agreements.
 
The Company had cash on hand of approximately $307,000 as of September 30, 2021 and approximately $644,000 as of November 9, 2021. The Company’s cash is
insufficient to fund its operations over the next year and the Company is currently working to obtain additional debt or equity financing to help support the Biosciences
Division’s business model.
 
There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to raise additional funds or that the terms and conditions of any future financings will be workable or acceptable to the
Company or its shareholders. If the Company is unable to fund its operations from existing cash on hand, operating cash flows, additional borrowings, or raising equity capital,
the Company may be forced to discontinue operations. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of
recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
 
NOTE 4 – RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET AND LEASE LIABILITY

 
The components of lease expense, which are included in other general and administrative expense, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, are as follows:

  
Three Months Ended 

 September 30,   
Nine Months Ended 

 September 30,  
   2021    2020    2021    2020  

Operating lease expense  $ 69,582   140,381   253,233   442,409 
 
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, are as follows:

  
Three Months Ended 

 September 30,   
Nine Months Ended 

 September 30,  
   2021    2020    2021    2020  

Operating cash flows from operating leases  $ 69,582   140,381   253,233   442,409 
 
Supplemental balance sheet and other information related to operating leases are as follows:

  September 30, 2021   December 31, 2020  
       

Operating leases right-of-use assets  $ 162,207   278,552 
Lease liability, current portion   92,589   139,189 
Lease liability, net of current portion   87,304   157,050 
Total operating lease liabilities  $ 179,893   296,239 
Weighted average remaining lease term   1.92 years   2.32 years 
Weighted average discount rate   9.96%  10.31%
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Future maturities of operating lease liabilities as of September 30, 2021 are as follows:
  Operating leases  
    
Remainder of 2021  $ 25,584 
2022   102,891 
2023   69,333 
Total lease payments   197,808 
Less: Interest   17,915 
Total lease liability  $ 179,893 
 
The Company did not renew its corporate office space lease in Tampa, FL which expired on March 31, 2021. The Company leases medical clinic space in Tampa, FL,
Nashville, TN, and Scottsdale, AZ. These clinic locations have various expiration dates through August 31, 2023. The leasing arrangements contain various renewal options
that are adjusted for increases in the consumer price index or agreed upon rates. The Company entered into a twelve-month lease extension for its Tampa location beginning
April 1, 2021 totaling $71,775. The Company also entered into a twelve-month lease extension for its Nashville location beginning November 1, 2021 totaling $94,500. The
Dallas, TX lease expired on July 31, 2020 and the Pittsburgh, PA lease expired on October 31, 2020, neither of which were renewed as these clinic locations were permanently
closed. The Company decided that its corporate staff will continue working remotely but the Company will have a small corporate meeting room in the Tampa LHI clinic.
 
NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

 
Property and equipment, net, consists of the following:
 
 
  Useful Life  September 30, 2021   December 31, 2020  
Furniture and fixtures  5-7 years  $ 96,185  $ 231,222 
Computers and software  3-7 years   213,660   246,323 
Leasehold improvements  15 years   40,130   155,583 
     349,975   633,128 
Less: accumulated depreciation     (309,631)   (493,953)
           
Total    $ 40,344  $ 139,175 
 
Depreciation expense was approximately $300 and $14,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively. Depreciation expense was approximately
$30,000 and $69,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively. The Company uses the straight-line depreciation method to calculate depreciation
expense. The Company recorded a loss on disposal of approximately $0 and $93,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively.
 
NOTE 6 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 
Board Members and Officers and Related Expenses
 
Effective February 1, 2019, the Company entered into an oral consulting agreement with Mr. Raymond Monteleone, Board Member and Chairman of the Audit Committee in
which Mr. Monteleone received $10,000 per month for advisory services and $5,000 per quarter as Audit Committee Chair in addition to regular quarterly board meeting fees.
Effective March 25, 2020, the Company reduced the advisory services to $5,000 per month and the fees per quarter as the Audit Committee Chair to $2,500 per quarter. On
January 12, 2021, Mr. Monteleone was appointed as Chairman of the Board and Compensation Committee Chair. There are understandings between the Company and Mr.
Monteleone for him to receive $5,000 per month to serve on the Board of Directors and an additional $2,500 per quarter to serve as Chairman of the Board, Audit Committee
Chair, and Compensation Committee Chair. The Company expensed approximately $18,000 and $53,000 in compensation to Mr. Monteleone for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2021, respectively. The Company expensed approximately $18,000 and $65,000 in compensation to Mr. Monteleone for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2020, respectively.
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Effective October 1, 2020, the Company entered into an oral agreement with Mr. Michael Yurkowsky in which Mr. Yurkowsky will receive $4,167 per month to serve on the
Board of Directors. The Company expensed approximately $13,000 and $38,000 in compensation to Mr. Yurkowsky for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021,
respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, the Company expensed $0.
 
On January 12, 2021, Mr. William Horne stepped down as Chairman of the Board. Mr. Horne will remain a member of the Board. Effective March 1, 2021, the Company
entered into an oral agreement with Mr. Horne in which Mr. Horne will receive $4,167 per month to serve on the Board of Directors. The Company expensed approximately
$13,000 and $29,000 in Board fee compensation to Mr. Horne for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021. For the three and nine months ended September 30,
2020, the Company expensed $0.
 
Debt and Other Obligations
 
The convertible notes payable and convertible notes payable, related parties are detailed in Note 3 - “Liquidity, Going Concern and Management’s Plans” in this Form 10-Q.
 
Change in Control
 
On September 11, 2020, with the closing of the Rights Offering, FWHC, LLC, FWHC Bridge, LLC, and FWHC Bridge Friends, LLC (collectively known as “FWHC”) gained
control of the Company by subsequently owning approximately 61% of the fully diluted shares of the Company. On July 28, 2020, the Company issued an aggregate of
15,518,111 shares of its common stock to FWHC upon the conversion of its issued Series D Convertible Preferred Stock. The Preferred Stock was converted pursuant to a
mandatory conversion triggered by the majority holder of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock as set forth in the Certificate of Designations for the Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock. On September 11, 2020, with the closing of the Rights Offering, FWHC was issued 123,031,819 shares of Preferred A Stock for conversion of the outstanding
promissory notes from April 2020, 75,162,429 shares of Preferred A Stock for conversion of the April Secured Note, 35,860,079 shares of Preferred A Stock for conversion of
the Hawes Notes, and 117,362,143 shares of Preferred A Stock issued upon the closing of the Rights Offering. FWHC was also issued 273,356,676 10-year warrants at $0.014
upon the closing of the Rights Offering.
 
Convertible Notes Payable
 
On April 1, 2021, the Company, entered into a Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (the “April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement”) with five (5) investors (the
“Holders”). Pursuant to the terms of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, the Company sold promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $2,575,000 maturing
on March 31, 2022 with an annual interest rate of 8%. The Notes are convertible into shares of Common Stock at a discount of 20% to the price paid for such New Securities in
the next round of financing that meets the definition of Qualified Financing as defined in the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement. The Notes are secured by the assets of the
Company under a security agreement with the Holders. The lead investor of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, FWHC Bridge, LLC, advanced $1,500,000 of the total
amount to the Company. FWHC Bridge, LLC is an affiliated entity of FWHC, LLC, which is a principal stockholder and related party of the Company. An additional affiliate
of FWHC, LLC provided an additional $25,000 as part of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement.
 
On October 14, 2021, H-Cyte, Inc. (the “Company”) entered into the Second Closing Bring Down Agreement (the “October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement”) whereby the five
(5) investors who had entered into the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement purchased new notes in the Company in the aggregate principal amount of $750,000. The Notes are
due and payable on March 31, 2022 and bear interest at an annual rate of 8%. The Notes are convertible into shares of Common Stock at a discount of 20% to the price paid for
such New Securities in the next financing that meets the definition of a Qualified Financing as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement. The Notes are secured by all of the
assets of the Company under a security agreement with the Holders. The lead investor of the October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, FWHC Bridge, LLC, advanced $437,000
of the total amount to the Company. FWHC Bridge, LLC is an affiliated entity of FWHC, LLC, which is a principal stockholder and related party of the Company. An
additional affiliate of FWHC, LLC provided an additional $7,500 as part of the October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement. 
 
NOTE 7 - EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

 
Common Stock Issuance

 
In February 2020, the Company issued LilyCon Investments $35,000 in shares of the Company’s common stock at a weighted average share price of $0.32 per share for a total
of 109,375 shares per the terms of the consulting agreement executed in February 2019.
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On April 23, 2020, Horne Management, LLC agreed to convert the related notes plus accrued interest into (i) 4,368,278 shares of common stock of the Company and (ii) a ten-
year warrant to purchase up to an equivalent number of shares of the Company’s common stock with such conversion to be effective as of April 17, 2020. This warrant will
have an exercise price equal to the price per share at which securities were offered to investors for purchase at the Qualified Financing, which was $0.014, and is exercisable
beginning on the day immediately following the closing of the Rights Offering, which occurred on September 11, 2020.
 
On July 28, 2020, the Company issued an aggregate of 17,893,076 shares of its common stock upon the conversion of all of its issued and outstanding Series B and Series D
Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock”) and accumulated dividends. The Preferred Stock was converted pursuant to a mandatory conversion triggered by the majority holder of
the Series D Preferred Stock as set forth in the Certificate of Designations for the Series D Preferred Stock.
 
On July 29, 2020, the Company filed its Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the “Amended COI”). The Amended COI provides for the issuance of up
to 1,600,000,000 shares of Common Stock and 1,000,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, of which 800,000,000 shares are designated as Series A Preferred Stock and eliminates
the previously authorized classes of preferred stock. The Amended COI also delineates the rights of the Series A Preferred Stock.
 
SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK

 
On September 11, 2020, the registered Rights Offering (Registration No. 333-239629) of the Company expired. Pursuant to the Rights Offering, on September 24, 2020, the
Company issued (i) 15,235,381 shares of its Series A preferred stock at a price of $0.014 per share to holders of its common stock who validly exercised their subscription
rights prior to the expiration time and (ii) 203,049,643 shares of its Series A preferred stock to the standby purchasers as part of the standby commitment. The Rights Offering,
including the standby component, resulted in gross proceeds to the Company of $3,055,985.
 
Additionally, on September 24, 2020, the Company issued an aggregate of 323,844,416 shares of its Series A Preferred Stock to the holders of outstanding promissory notes,
issued in April 2020, in the aggregate principal amount and accrued interest of $4,483,617. The notes were converted pursuant to a mandatory conversion triggered by the
completion of the Rights Offering (for further discussion, see Note 9 - “Equity Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on
Form 10-K).
 
During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, 4,431,530 and 22,235,055 shares of Series A Preferred Stock were converted to Common Stock at the request of
certain Series A Preferred Shareholders.
 
Voting Rights
 
Holders of Series A Preferred Stock (“Series A Holders”) have the right to receive notice of any meeting of holders of common stock and to vote upon any matter submitted to
a vote of the holders of common stock. Each Series A Holder shall vote on each matter on an as converted basis submitted to them with the holders of common stock.
 
Conversion
 
Series A Preferred Stock converts to common stock at a 1:1 ratio immediately upon request of the Series A Holder.
 
Liquidation
 
Series A Preferred Stock does not have preferential treatment over common stock shareholders if the Company liquidates or dissolves.
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

 
The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes valuation method to recognize share-based compensation expense over the vesting period. The expected life represents the period that
the stock-based compensation awards are expected to be outstanding.
 
 
STOCK OPTION ACTIVITY

 
On April 1, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company approved and granted to certain directors and officers of the Company an aggregate of 54,750,000 stock options of
which 4,750,000 were immediately vested on the date of grant. Each option granted has an exercise price of $0.07 per share and an expiration date of ten years from the date of
grant. These options are not included in the Company’s current stock option plan as they were granted outside of the plan.
 
The Board of Directors decided not to renew the former CEO’s (Robert Greif) employment contract; therefore, the unvested shares were forfeited resulting in a reduction of
share-based compensation of approximately $205,000 for the period ending September 30, 2021 that was recognized during the period ending June 30, 2021.
 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2020, all outstanding stock options were fully vested, and related compensation expense recognized. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2021, 29,635,000 options were outstanding and 14,801,667 were vested. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 the Company recognized
approximately $162,000 and $1,024,000 in stock-based compensation expense, respectively. The Company has approximately $574,000 of unrecognized compensation costs
related to non-vested stock options, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 3.12 years.
 
Inputs used in the valuation models are as follows:

2021 Grants
Option value  $ 0.054   to    0.056 
Risk Free Rate   0.90%  to    1.37%
Expected Dividend- yield   -   to    - 
Expected Volatility   173.99%  to    176.04%
Expected term (years)   5   to    7 

 
The following is a summary of stock option activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and 2021:

  Shares   

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price   

Weighted Average
Remaining Term

(Years)  
Outstanding at December 31, 2019   425,000  $ 1.38   7.71 
Granted   -   -   - 
Expired/Cancelled   (15,000)   1.35   - 
Outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2020   410,000  $ 1.39   7.23 
             
Outstanding at December 31, 2020   410,000  $ 1.39   6.72 
Granted   54,750,000   0.07   9.50 
Expired/Cancelled   (25,525,000)   0.07   - 
Outstanding at September 30, 2021   29,635,000  $ 0.10   9.41 
             
Exercisable at September 30, 2021   14,801,667  $ 0.10   9.41 
 
The following is a summary of the Company’s non-vested shares for the nine months ended September 30, 2021:

  Shares   

Weighted 
Average Grant

 Date Fair Value  
Non-vested at December 31, 2020   -   - 
Granted   54,750,000   0.03 
Vested   (14,416,667)   0.05 
Forfeited   (25,500,000)   0.07 
Non-vested at September 30, 2021   14,833,333   0.11 
 
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Company consolidated the results for LI Dallas, LI Nashville, LI Pittsburgh, and LI Scottsdale as VIEs. The
Company owns no portion of any of these four entities, however, the Company maintains control through their management role for each of the clinics, in accordance with each
clinic’s respective management services agreement. Based on these agreements, the Company has the responsibility to run and make decisions on behalf of the clinics, except
for medical care and procedures. Beginning in January 2018, the Company adopted the policy, for all of the VIEs, that the management fee charged by the Company would
equal the amount of net income from each VIE on a monthly basis, bringing the amount of the net income to $0 each month for the VIEs. Due to this change in policy, there
was no change in the non-controlling interest for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 or 2020 related to the net income (loss) as it was $0 each month through the
management fee charged by the Company. The LI Dallas and LI Pittsburgh clinics did not reopen in 2020 after the temporary closure of all LI clinics due to COVID-19. These
two clinics will remain permanently closed.
 
NET LOSS PER SHARE

 
Basic loss per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the reporting period. Diluted loss per share is computed on the basis of
the weighted average number of common shares plus dilutive potential common shares outstanding using the treasury stock method. Any potentially dilutive securities are
antidilutive due to the Company’s net losses.
 
The Company excluded the following securities from the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share as the effect would have been antidilutive:
 

  For the Nine Months Ended September 30,  



  2021   2020  
Warrants to purchase common stock (in the money)   385,033,082   367,515,043 
Series A Preferred Stock convertible to common stock   515,874,354   542,129,440 
Total   900,907,436   909,644,483 
 
Excluded from the above table are 22,607,701 warrants and 29,635,000 stock options for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 as they are out of the money (exercise
price greater than $0.04). Inclusion of such would be anti-dilutive.
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NOTE 8 – COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

 
LITIGATION

 
From time to time, the Company may be involved in routine legal proceedings, as well as demands, claims and threatened litigation that arise in the normal course of our
business. The ultimate amount of liability, if any, for any claims of any type (either alone or in the aggregate) may materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations, and liquidity. In addition, the ultimate outcome of any litigation is uncertain. Any outcome, whether favorable or unfavorable, may materially
and adversely affect the Company due to legal costs and expenses, diversion of management attention, and other factors. The Company expenses legal costs in the period
incurred. The Company cannot assure that additional contingencies of a legal nature or contingencies having legal aspects will not be asserted against the Company in the
future, and these matters could relate to prior, current, or future transactions or events. As of September 30, 2021, the Company had no litigation matters which required any
accrual or disclosure.
 
RION AGREEMENTS

 
On June 21, 2019, H-CYTE entered into an exclusive product supply agreement with Rion, LLC (“Rion”) to develop and distribute (post FDA approval) a biologic for chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease (“COPD”), the fourth leading cause of death in the U.S. Rion has established a novel biologics technology to harness the healing power of the
body. Rion’s innovative technology, based on science developed at Mayo Clinic, provides an off-the-shelf platform to enhance healing in soft tissue, musculoskeletal,
cardiovascular and neurological organ systems. This agreement provides for a 10-year exclusive and extendable supply agreement with Rion to enable H-CYTE to develop
proprietary biologics. The Company is currently evaluating the potential of a combined biologic and the utilization of this agreement.
 
On October 9, 2019, the Company entered into a services agreement with Rion which provides the Company the benefit of Rion’s resources and expertise for the limited
purpose of (i) consulting with and assisting H-CYTE in the further research and development for the generation of a new biologic and (ii) subsequently assisting H-CYTE in
seeking and obtaining FDA Phase 1 IND clearance for this biologic as necessary. Rion also agrees to consult with H-CYTE in its arrangement for services from third parties
unaffiliated with Rion to support research, development, regulatory approval, and commercialization of the biologic. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021
the Company expensed $0. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020 the Company expensed $202,000 and $1,152,000, respectively. The Company is currently
evaluating the potential of a combined biologic and the utilization of this agreement.
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NOTE 9 – SHORT-TERM DEBT

 
CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

 
Convertible Notes payable represents a securities purchase agreement with select accredited investors, which was assumed in the Asset Purchase Agreement between Medovex
Corp and Regenerative Medicine Solutions, LLC (“Merger”) in 2019 (see Note 1 – “Description of the Company” to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s
2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K). The debt assumed by the Company, as part of the merger, consisted of $750,000 of units (the “Units”) with a purchase price of $50,000
per Unit. Each Unit consists of (i) a 12% senior secured convertible note, initially convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share, at a
conversion price equal to the lesser of $0.40 or ninety percent (90%) of the per share purchase price of any shares of common stock or common stock equivalents issued in
future private placements of equity and/or debt securities completed by the Company following this offering, and (ii) a three-year warrant to purchase such number of shares of
the Company’s common stock equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the notes at $0.40. The Convertible
Notes were secured by all of the assets of the Company.
 
In 2019, $100,000 of the Convertible Notes were converted into shares of common stock, and $350,000 of the Convertible Notes were redeemed by the Company. The
Company reached an extension with the remaining noteholder which extended the maturity date of the Hawes Notes for one year, until September 30, 2020. The notes had a
principal balance of $300,000 plus penalties of approximately $85,000 and accrued interest of approximately $40,000 for a total adjusted principal balance upon renewal of
$424,615 as of March 31, 2020. In connection with the April Offering, the Company entered into an amendment with the Investor with respect to the outstanding 12% Senior
Secured Convertible Note due September 30, 2020, which was originally issued in 2018 and assumed in the Merger and which was purchased by the Investor from its original
holder, George Hawes, on March 27, 2020 (see Note 11 –“Debt” to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K).
 
On April 1, 2021, the Company, entered into a Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (the “April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement”) with five (5) investors (the
“Holders”). Pursuant to the terms of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, the Company sold promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $2,575,000 maturing
on March 31, 2022 with an annual interest rate of 8%. The Notes are convertible into shares of Common Stock at a discount of 20% to the price paid for such New Securities in
the next round of financing that meets the definition of Qualified Financing as defined in the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement. The Notes are secured by the assets of the
Company under a security agreement with the Holders. The lead investor of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, FWHC Bridge, LLC, advanced $1,500,000 of the total
amount to the Company. FWHC Bridge, LLC is an affiliated entity of FWHC, LLC, which is a principal stockholder and related party of the Company. An additional affiliate
of FWHC, LLC provided an additional $25,000 as part of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement.
 
Interest expense is being accreted to the principal balance using the effective interest method. For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2021, the Company
recorded interest expense of $30,445 for related party convertible notes payable and $20,962 for convertible notes payable and $59,665 for related party convertible notes
payable and $41,080 for convertible notes payable, respectively.
 
NOTES PAYABLE

 
Notes payable were assumed in the Merger and are due in aggregate monthly installments of approximately $5,800 and carry an interest rate of 5%. Each note originally had a
maturity date of August 1, 2019. The Company finalized an eighteen-month extension to March 1, 2021. The Company is working with the lender for an additional extension
of the promissory notes. The promissory notes have an aggregate outstanding balance of approximately $67,000 at September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020. The Company
has not made payments on this note since February 10, 2020, due to COVID-19, resulting in accrued interest of approximately $5,000.
 
On March 27, 2020, the Company issued a demand note in the principal amount of $500,000 to FWHC Bridge, LLC (the “Investor”) in exchange for a loan made by the
Investor in such amount to cover the Company’s working capital needs. Subsequently on April 9, 2020, in exchange for an additional loan of $500,000 made by the Investor to
the Company, the Company amended and restated the demand note to reflect a new principal amount of $1,000,000, which became the A&R Note (see Note 11-”Debt” to the
consolidated financial statements in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K).
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PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

 
On April 29, 2020, the Company issued a promissory note in the principal amount of $809,082 to the Bank of Tampa in connection with a loan in such amount made under the
Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP Loan”). The PPP Loan bears an interest rate of 1% per annum and matures on April 29, 2022. The Company elected to use a 24-week
Covered Period, per the SBA Paycheck Protection Program guidelines, which ended on October 14, 2020.
 
The Company could apply for loan forgiveness in an amount equal to the sum of the following costs incurred by the Company:
 
1) payroll costs;
2) any payment of interest on covered mortgage obligations;
3) any payment on a covered rent obligation; and
4) any covered utility payment
 
The Company received notification from the Small Business Administration (“SBA”), dated August 17, 2021, notifying it that $689,974 in principal and $8,847 in interest was
forgiven under the guidelines of the Paycheck Protection Program. As of September 30, 2021, the current balance is $105,878 with $405 in interest payable.
 
NOTE 10 – DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

 
The Company’s derivative liabilities are classified within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy because certain unobservable inputs were used in the valuation models. These
assumptions included estimated future stock prices, potential down-round financings for the Warrants, and potential redemptions for the Redemption Put Liability.
 
The following are rollforwards of the liabilities during the nine months ended September 30, 2020:
 

Derivative Liability - Warrants    
    
Balance at December 31, 2019  $ 315,855 
Series D Warrant reclass from equity to liability classification   509,762 
Warrants issued with modification of Horne Note   198,994 
Warrants issued with April 17, 2020 financing   6,148,816 
Fair value adjustments   (2,986,853)
Warrant reclassification from liability to equity classification   (4,186,574)
Balance at September 30, 2020  $ — 
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Redemption Put Liability    
    
Balance at December 31, 2019  $ 267,399 
Issuance of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock   5,306 
Fair value adjustments   (272,705)
Balance at September 30, 2020  $ — 

 
 (1) The Company did not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value using Level 1 or 2 of the fair value hierarchy as of September 30, 2020.
 
 (2) Upon the closing of a Qualified Financing on September 11, 2020, the Derivative Liability- Warrants were reclassed to stockholder’s equity.
 
 (3) The Series D Preferred Stock was converted into common stock on July 28, 2020 at which time the Derivative Put Liability was no longer applicable, and its fair value

as adjusted to zero and the extinguishment was recorded to income.
 
Derivative Liability- Warrants
 
Series B Warrants
 
As part of the April 2020 Offering, the holders of the Series B Warrants agreed to terminate anti-dilution price protection in their warrants and adjusted the exercise price to
equal the price per share at which shares of preferred stock are offered for purchase in a Qualified Financing. The modification resulted in an increase of approximately $75,000
to the fair value of the derivative liability related to the Series B Warrants. In addition, the Company recorded a change in fair market value of approximately $317,000 to the
fair value of the derivative liability before the reclass to equity.
 
Upon the closing of a Qualified Financing, which occurred on September 11, 2020, the exercise price of the Series B Warrants became fixed at $0.014 and the warrants then
met the conditions for equity classification. Consequently, they were revalued as of the date of the Qualified Financing using a Black Scholes valuation technique with the
following assumptions: Trading market price - $0.027, estimated exercise price - $0.014, volatility - 260%, risk free rate - 0.13% and an estimated remaining term of 1.33 years.
The fair value of the Series B Warrants totaling $73,805 was then reclassed from a derivative liability to stockholders’ equity.
 
Series D Warrants
 
In conjunction with the Series D Preferred Financing, the Company originally issued Series D warrants to purchase 14,669,757 shares of Common Stock with an exercise price
of $0.75 per share. At inception, the Series D warrants met all the criteria to be classified as equity. As part of the April 2020 Offering, the exercise price of the Series D
Warrants was reduced to the price per share at which shares of preferred stock are offered for purchase in a Qualified Financing. The modification of the exercise price resulted
in the warrants requiring liability classification. The Series D Warrants were measured at fair value before and after the modification, resulting in a fair market value of
approximately $510,000 when the warrants were reclassified to a liability on July 28, 2020.
 
Upon the closing of a Qualified Financing, which occurred on September 11, 2020, the exercise price of the Series D Warrants became fixed at $0.014 and the warrants then
met the conditions for equity classification. Consequently, the Series D Warrants were revalued as of the date of the Qualified Financing using a Black Scholes valuation
technique with the following assumptions: Trading market price - $0.027, estimated exercise price - $0.014, volatility - 111%, risk free rate - 0.67% and an estimated term of
9.2 years. The fair value of the Series D Warrants totaling $337,400 was then reclassed from a derivative liability to stockholders’ equity.
 
Horne Warrants
 
On April 23, 2020, Horne Management, LLC agreed to convert the related notes plus accrued interest into (i) 4,368,278 shares of common stock of the Company and (ii) a ten-
year warrant to purchase up to an equivalent number of shares of the Company’s common stock with such conversion to be effective as of April 17, 2020. The warrant will
have an exercise price equal to the price per share at which securities are offered to investors for purchase at the Qualified Financing. The revised exercise price caused the
warrants to require liability classification at fair value and the warrants were valued using a Lattice model with the following assumptions: Trading market price- $0.05,
estimated exercise price- $0.014, volatility- 101%, risk free rate- 0.65% and an estimated term of 10 years. At inception, the estimated fair value of the Horne Warrants was
approximately $199,000.
 
Upon the closing of a Qualified Financing, which occurred on September 11, 2020, the exercise price of the Series D Warrants became fixed at $0.014 and the warrants then
met the conditions for equity classification. Consequently, the Horne Warrants were revalued as of the date of the Qualified Financing using a Lattice valuation technique with
the following assumptions: Trading market price- $0.027, estimated exercise price- $0.014, volatility- 103%, risk free rate- 0.67% and an estimated term of 10 years. The fair
value of the Horne Warrants totaling $107,123 was then reclassed from a derivative liability to stockholders’ equity.
 
April Bridge Loan and Converted Advance Warrants
 
The April 2020 Offering entitled the investors to warrants with the right to purchase up to 100% of the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock into which the
Purchaser’s Note may ultimately be converted. The Company also received a $1,000,000 advance which was converted into a Converted Advance Note and Converted
Advance Warrants in April 2020. The Converted Advance Warrants entitle the holder to purchase up to 200% of the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock into which
the Converted Advanced Note may ultimately be converted.
 
The Company received an aggregate of $2,842,695 in gross proceeds through the April Offering and an advance of $1,000,000 (A&R Note) which was converted into an
Advance Note on April 17, 2020. The Company expected the price per share at which securities would be offered for purchase in the Qualified Financing to be $0.014 resulting
in the assumption there would be approximately 203,050,000 and 142,857,000 shares issuable upon exercise of the Purchaser Warrants and the Converted Advance Warrants,
respectively. The warrants were valued using a Lattice model with the following assumptions: Trading market price - $0.05, estimated exercise price - $0.014, volatility - 103%,
risk free rate- 0.65% and an estimated term of 10 years. At inception, the estimated fair value of the Purchaser Warrants and the Converted Advance Warrants was
approximately $3,279,000 and $2,869,000, respectively for a total of approximately $6,149,000.
 
Upon the closing of a Qualified Financing, which occurred on September 11, 2020, the exercise price of the Purchaser and Converted Advance Warrants became fixed at
$0.014 and the Company then had sufficient authorized and unissued shares available to satisfy all their commitments under their equity-linked contracts. There are
212,821,929 and 150,324,857 shares issuable upon exercise of the Purchaser and the Converted Advance Warrants, respectively. The Warrants were revalued as of the date of
the Qualified Financing using a Lattice valuation technique with the following assumptions: Trading market price - $0.027, estimated exercise price - $0.014, volatility - 106%,
risk free rate - 0.67% and an estimated term of 10 years. The fair value of the Warrants of $3,668,247 was then reclassed from a derivative liability to stockholders’ equity.
 
When the Company entered into the April Offering and revised the exercise price of their warrants to the price per share at which shares of preferred stock are offered for
purchase in a Qualified Financing, they no longer had sufficient authorized and unissued shares available to satisfy all their commitments to issue shares under their equity-



linked contracts. The Company adopted the sequencing approach based on the earliest issuance date. Therefore, warrants issued before the April Offering did not require
liability classification, while Warrants issued with the April financing, or subsequently, were classified as liabilities until such time the Company had sufficient authorized
shares.
 
At December 31, 2019, due to the down round provision contained in the warrants, which could provide for the issuance of additional warrant shares as well as a reduction in
the exercise price, the model also considered subjective assumptions related to the shares that would be issued in a down-round financing and the potential adjustment to the
exercise price. On April 17, 2020, the holders of the warrants agreed to terminate all anti-dilution price protections in their warrants.
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The derivative liability has been remeasured to fair value at the end of each reporting period and the change in fair value, of approximately $5,869,102 and ($2,986,853), has
been recorded as a component of other income (expense) in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020,
respectively. For the three month period ended September 30, 2020, the derivative liability has been remeasured to fair value at September 11, 2020 and then converted to
equity due to the Qualified Financing and fixed as all derivative liabilities were converted.
 
The fair value of the derivative liability included on the consolidated balance sheet was approximately $0 and $316,000 as of September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019,
respectively.
 
In conjunction with the Series D Preferred financing (See Note 12), the Company offered the Series B warrant holders the option to exchange their warrants on the basis of 1
warrant for 0.40 common shares. Warrant holders chose to exchange 1,007,813 warrants with a fair value of approximately $75,000 for 403,125 shares of common stock with a
fair value of approximately $73,000. On the date of the exchange, the Series B Warrants were first adjusted to fair value with the change in fair value being recorded in
earnings.
 
REDEMPTION PUT LIABILITY

 
As described in Note 12, the redemption put provision embedded in the Series D financing required bifurcation and measurement at fair value as a derivative. If the redemption
put provision is triggered, it allows either payment in cash or the issuance of “Trigger Event Warrants”. Accordingly, the fair value of the Redemption put liability considered
management’s estimate of the probability of cash payment versus payment in Trigger Event Warrants and was valued using a Monte Carlo Simulation which uses randomly
generated stock-price paths obtained through a Geometric Brownian Motion stock price simulation. The fair value of the redemption provision was significantly influenced by
the fair value of the Company’s stock price, stock price volatility, changes in interest rates and management’s assumptions related to the redemption factor. On July 28, 2020,
the Series D Preferred Stock was converted into Common Stock, at which time the redemption put was no longer applicable and the fair value of the redemption put was
adjusted to zero.
 
The fair market value of the redemption put liability at inception was approximately $614,000 which was recorded as a liability and remeasured to fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The change in fair value of approximately $98,000 and $273,000 has been recorded as a component of other income (expense) in the Company’s consolidated
statement of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively. The fair value of the redemption put liability included on the consolidated
balance sheet was approximately $0 and $267,000 as of September 30, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively.
 
The Company did not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value using Level 1 or 2 of the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2020 (see Note 12- “Derivative
Liability-Warrants and Redemption Put” to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K).
 
NOTE 11 - COMMON STOCK WARRANTS

 
A summary of the Company’s warrant issuance activity and related information for the period ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:
 

   Shares   
Weighted Average

Exercise Price   

Weighted Average
Remaining Contractual

Life  
Outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2019   44,806,076  $ 0.78   4.59 
Issued   368,325,486   0.015   10.30 
Total outstanding at September 30, 2020   413,131,562   0.09   9.79 
             
Outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2020   413,423,972  $ 0.015   10.30 
Expired   (5,783,189)  $ 0.33   — 
Issued   —   —   — 
Total outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2021   407,640,783  $ 0.58   8.42 
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The fair value of all warrants issued are determined by using the Black-Scholes valuation technique and were assigned based on the relative fair value of both the common
stock and the warrants issued. The inputs used in the Black-Scholes valuation technique to value each of the warrants as of their respective issue dates are as follows:
 

Event Description  Date   
Number of
Warrants   

H-CYTE
Stock
Price   

Exercise
Price of
Warrant   

Grant
Date Fair

Value   
Life of

Warrant   

Risk Free
Rate of
Return

(%)   

Annualized
Volatility
Rate (%)  

Short-term note, related party   1/13/2020   268,571  $ 0.12  $ 0.75  $ 0.07   3 years   1.60   145.76 
Private placement of Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock   1/17/2020   244,996  $ 0.15  $ 0.75  $ 0.13   10 years   1.84   144.30 
Granted for bridge financing   4/8/2020   296,875  $ 0.05  $ 0.40  $ 0.04   3 years   0.34   131.82 
Short-term note, related party conversion   4/17/2020   4,368,278  $ 0.05  $ 0.014  $ 0.05   10 years   0.65   100.64 
Granted for bridge financing   9/11/2020   364,439,176  $ 0.05  $ 0.014  $ 0.017   10 years   0.65   96.97 
 
The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the
Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair
value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
 
NOTE 12 - SERIES D CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

 
On November 15, 2019, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with selected accredited investors whereby the Company offered (i) up to 238,871 shares of
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock the (“Series D Shares”) at a price of $40.817 per share and (ii) a ten-year warrant (the “Series D Warrant”) to purchase 14,669,757 shares
of common stock. The Series D Warrants are exercisable for a period of 10 years from issuance at an initial exercise price of $0.75 per share, subject to adjustment for
traditional equity restructurings and reorganizations.
 
On November 21, 2019, the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement with FWHC Holdings, LLC (“FWHC”) an accredited investor for the purchase of 146,998
shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share and the Series D Warrant (the “FWHC Investment”; see note 14 - “Mezzanine Equity and Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock” to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K).
 
For the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the Company recorded $0 and $278,476, respectively, in deemed dividends on the Series D Convertible Preferred
Stock in accordance with the 8% stated dividend resulting in a total balance of Series D Convertible Preferred stock of $6,281,433 at September 30, 2020. All outstanding
shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock were converted into 15,773,363 shares of Common Stock on July 28, 2020. The conversion was pursuant to a mandatory
conversion triggered by the majority holder of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock as set forth in the Certificate of Designations.
 
As of December 31, 2020, the Company does not have any Series D Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding (see Note 9 - “Equity Transactions” to the consolidated financial
statements in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K).
 
NOTE 13 – INCOME TAXES

 
The Company utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in FASB ASC Topic 740, “Income Taxes”. Under the liability method, deferred taxes are
determined based on temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect during the years in
which the difference turns around. The Company accounts for interest and penalties on income taxes as income tax expense. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is more
likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized. In determining the need for valuation allowances the Company considers projected future taxable income and the
availability of tax planning strategies.
 
From inception to September 30, 2021, the Company has incurred net losses and, therefore, has no current income tax liability. The net deferred tax asset generated by these
losses is fully offset by a valuation allowance as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020. Management of the Company evaluated the positive and negative evidence
bearing upon the realizability of its deferred tax assets and determined that it is more likely than not that the Company will not recognize the full benefits of the deferred tax
assets.
 
The Company’s policy is to record interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions as a component of income tax expense. There are no uncertain tax positions at September
30, 2021 and December 31, 2020. The Company has not undergone any tax examinations since inception.
 
NOTE 14 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 11, 2021 and has determined that there have been no events that would require adjustments to or disclosure
in the September 30, 2021 interim Consolidated Financial Statements other than those disclosed in this Form 10-Q.
 
On October 14, 2021, H-Cyte, Inc. (the “Company”) entered into the Second Closing Bring Down Agreement (the “October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement”) whereby the five
(5) investors who had entered into the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement purchased new notes in the Company in the aggregate principal amount of $750,000. The Notes
bear an annual interest rate of 8% and are due and payable on March 31, 2022. The Notes are convertible into shares of Common Stock at a discount of 20% of the price paid
for such New Securities in the next financing that meets the definition of a Qualified Financing as defined in the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement. The Notes are secured
by all the assets of the Company under a security agreement with the Holders. The lead investor of the October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, FWHC Bridge, LLC, advanced
$437,000 of the total amount to the Company. FWHC Bridge, LLC is an affiliated entity of FWHC, LLC, which is a principal stockholder and related party of the Company. An
additional affiliate of FWHC, LLC provided an additional $7,500 as part of the October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement.  
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

 
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes
thereto appearing in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report. Historical results and trends that might appear in this Quarterly Report should not be interpreted as being indicative
of future operations.
 
Overview
 
H-CYTE, Inc (“the Company”) is a hybrid-biopharmaceutical company dedicated to developing and delivering new treatments for patients with chronic respiratory and
pulmonary disorders. During the last two years, the Company has evolved into two separate divisions with its entrance into the biologics development space (“Biologics
Division”). This new division is complementary to the Company’s current Lung Health Institute (LHI) autologous infusion therapy business (“Infusion Division”) and is
focused on underserved disease states. On September 8, 2021, the Company announced that its Lung Health Institute facilities changed its name to Centers for Respiratory
Health as the clinics continue to deliver treatments for patients with chronic respiratory and pulmonary disorders.
 
The consolidated results for H-CYTE include the following wholly owned subsidiaries: H-CYTE Management, LLC, Medovex Corp, Cognitive Health Institute, LLC, and
Lung Institute Tampa, LLC and the results include Lung Institute Dallas, PLLC (“LI Dallas”), Lung Institute Nashville, PLLC (“LI Nashville”), Lung Institute Pittsburgh,
PLLC (“LI Pittsburgh”), and Lung Institute Scottsdale, LLC (“LI Scottsdale”), as Variable Interest Entities (“VIEs”). Additionally, H-CYTE Management, LLC is the operator
and manager of the various Lung Health Institute (LHI) clinics: LI Dallas, LI Nashville, LI Pittsburgh, and LI Scottsdale. The LI Dallas and LI Pittsburgh clinics did not reopen
in 2020 after the temporary closure of all LI clinics due to COVID-19. These two clinics will remain permanently closed.
 
On September 11, 2020, with the closing of the Rights Offering, FWHC, LLC, FWHC Bridge, LLC, and FWHC Bridge Friends, LLC (collectively known as “FWHC”) gained
control of the Company by subsequently owning approximately 61% of the fully diluted shares of the Company (for further discussion, see Notes 8 and 9-”Equity
Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K).
 
Autologous Infusion Therapy (“Infusion Division”)
 
The Infusion Division develops and implements innovative treatment options in autologous cellular therapy (PRP-PBMC) to treat chronic lung disorders. Committed to an
individualized patient-centric approach, this division provides oversight and management of the highest quality to the LHI clinics, while producing positive medical outcomes
following the strictest Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (the “CDC”) guidelines.
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Biotech Development (“Biologics Division”)
 
On June 21, 2019, H-CYTE entered into an exclusive product supply agreement with Rion, LLC (“Rion”) to develop and distribute (post U.S. Food & Drug Administration, the
“FDA”, approval) a biologic combining its PRP-PBMC technology with Rion’s exosomes (“EV”) technology for the treatment of chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
(“COPD”), the fourth leading cause of death in the U.S. Rion has established a novel EV technology to harness the healing power of the body. Rion’s innovative technology,
based on science developed at Mayo Clinic, provides an off-the-shelf platform to enhance healing in soft tissue, musculoskeletal, cardiovascular, and neurological organ
systems. This agreement provides for a 10-year exclusive and extendable supply agreement with Rion to enable H-CYTE to develop combined proprietary biologics. The
Company is evaluating alternate EV technologies to determine the most favorable path forward.
 
On October 9, 2019, the Company entered into a services agreement with Rion which provides the Company the benefit of Rion’s resources and expertise for the limited
purpose of (i) consulting with and assisting H-CYTE in the further research and development for the generation of a new biologic and (ii) subsequently assisting H-CYTE in
seeking and obtaining FDA Phase 1 IND clearance for this biologic as necessary. Rion has completed the research and development work which is under review by the
Company. The Company is assessing if the Rion combined proprietary biologic is a more viable solution than potentially progressing with a single entity biologic from an
alternative commercial source.
 
On April 2, 2021, the Company entered into a series of agreements with Medovex, LLC to pursue a joint venture regarding the continued development and commercialization
of the DenerveX device for business outside of the U.S. The Company has determined that the transactions resulting from the series of agreements with Medovex, LLC are
immaterial. The Company will assess the progress of the joint venture on a quarterly basis for materiality.
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 
The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based on its consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
 
The Company bases our estimates on historical experience and on various other factors that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions.
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Results of Operations - Nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
 
Revenue, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit
 
The Company recorded revenue of approximately $460,000 and $1,287,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively. The Company recorded
revenue of approximately $650,000 and $1,686,000, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively. The decrease in revenue for the three months ended
September 30, 2021, as compared to the prior year is attributable to the economic impact that COVID-19 has had on the Company due to its vulnerable patient base being
unable or unwilling to travel due to the virus. The Company suspended operations of the Infusion Vertical due to COVID-19 effective March 23, 2020 and did not reopen until
August 2020. The Company had pent up demand for the three months ended September 30, 2020 from patients who were not able to come in for treatment due to suspension of
operations. The Company experienced higher revenue during the three months ended September 30, 2020 than the three months ended September 30, 2021 due to this pent up
demand even though the clinics were only open August and September 2020.
 
The Company recorded cost of sales of approximately $139,000 and $553,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively. The Company recorded
cost of sales of approximately $161,000 and $608,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively. The decrease in cost of sales for the three months
ended September 30, 2021, as compared to the prior year, is attributable to the economic impact that COVID-19 has had on the Company. The Company’s cost of sales is
comprised of two main components: medical supplies and personnel costs for the Infusion Vertical. Medical supplies are predominantly variable costs based on the number of
treatments provided; personnel expenses are also variable as these are hourly positions. The number of treatments provided, during normal operations, can be handled
adequately with the Company’s current level of personnel. The Company possesses the opportunity to increase the number of treatments performed without increasing
personnel costs as it can leverage the current personnel’s availability until the Company’s treatment volume reaches critical mass. However, upon an increase in treatment
volume beyond that capacity, the Company will need to hire additional personnel.
 
The Company generated gross profit of approximately $321,000 and $733,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively. The Company generated
gross profit of approximately $489,000 and $1,078,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively. The decrease in gross profit, as compared to the
prior year, is attributable to the economic impact that COVID-19 has had on the Company.
 
Operating Expenses
 
Salaries and Related Costs
 
The Company incurred salaries and related costs of approximately $535,000 and $1,783,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively. The
Company incurred salaries and related costs of approximately $606,000 and $2,425,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively.
 
Other General and Administrative
 
The Company incurred other general and administrative costs of approximately $789,000 and $2,229,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021,
respectively. The Company incurred other general and administrative costs of approximately $542,000 and $2,807,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2020, respectively. The decrease, as compared to the prior year, is attributable to the economic impact that COVID-19 has had on the Company.
 
Of the total other general and administrative costs, approximately $332,000 and $813,000 were related to professional fees for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2021. Professional fees were approximately $393,000 and $1,179,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020. Professional fees consist primarily of
accounting, legal, and public company compliance costs as well as regulatory costs.
 
Research and Development
 
The Company incurred research and development expenses of approximately $3,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021. The Company incurred research
in development expenses of approximately $202,000 and $1,152,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively. The $1,152,000 expense in 2020
was in connection with the Rion agreements.
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Advertising
 
The Company incurred advertising costs of approximately $59,000 and $224,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively. The Company incurred
advertising costs of approximately $52,000 and $222,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively. The increase, as compared to the prior year, is
attributable to the economic impact that COVID-19 had on the Company in 2020 as the clinics were temporarily closed during the three months ended September 30, 2020,
resulting in a reduction in marketing spend during the temporary closure.
 
Departure of Directors and Certain Officers, Election of Directors, Appointment of New Board Members and Officers.
 
On January 12, 2021, Mr. William Horne stepped down as Chairman of the Board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company. Mr. Horne will remain a member of the Board.
 
On January 12, 2021, Mr. Ray Monteleone was appointed the new Chairman of the Board. Mr. Monteleone is a current member of the Board.
 
On September 28, 2021, Mr. Robert Greif’s employment agreement with H-Cyte, Inc. (the “Company”) expired, ending his term as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer.
The Company chose not to renew his employment agreement. Ms. Tanya Rhodes, the Company’s Chief Technology Officer, will serve as interim Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. She will continue to receive a consulting fee of $253,000 per year pursuant to her existing consulting arrangement. Ms. Rhodes is an innovative, growth-oriented
leader in the healthcare industry with a broad base of international experience in all aspects of operational business including R&D, clinical and regulatory, and business
development. Ms. Rhodes has a demonstrated record of accomplishment for bringing new technologies from concept through commercialization and possesses an in-depth
knowledge of biological tissues, enzymes, stem cells, antimicrobials, and natural products. Prior to joining the Company on June 15, 2020, Ms. Rhodes held various C-level
positions in many sectors, including wound care, dermatology, aesthetics and plastic surgery. Ms. Rhodes was the Vice President of Innovation for Smith & Nephew and a
global executive team member driving a $450 million dollar business. Ms. Rhodes has served as President of Rhodes & Associates since 2016 through which, Ms. Rhodes has
held long-term contracts with medical device and drug companies as well as private equity companies. Ms. Rhodes completed her PhD in molecular orbital computational
chemistry in the United Kingdom and received a Masters degree in the Management of Technology in the United States.
 
Funding Requirements
 
The Company has historically incurred losses from operations and expects to continue to generate negative cash flows as the Company implements its business plan to focus on
the Biologics Division. The Company will need to raise cash from debt and equity offerings to continue its operations. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
successful in doing so.
 
Going Concern
 
The Company reported net losses of approximately $587,000 and $4,052,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively. The Company reported net
income/(loss) of approximately $3,950,000 and ($4,899,000) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively.
 
The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm included an explanatory paragraph with respect to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in its
report on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. The presence of the going concern explanatory paragraph suggests that the
Company may not have sufficient liquidity or minimum cash levels to operate the business. Since its inception, the Company has incurred losses and anticipates that the
Company will continue to incur losses until its products can generate enough revenue to offset its operating expenses. The present level of cash is insufficient to satisfy our
current operating requirements and Biologics Division business model.
 
There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to raise additional funds or that the terms and conditions of any future financings will be workable or acceptable to the
Company or its shareholders. If the Company is unable to fund its operations from existing cash on hand, operating cash flows, additional borrowings, or raising equity capital,
the Company may be forced to discontinue operations. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of
recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
 
In the event the Company is unable to fund its operations from existing cash on hand, operating cash flows, additional borrowings or raising equity capital, the Company may
be forced to reduce our expenses, or discontinue operations. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and
classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.
 
Liquidity and Sources of Liquidity
 
With the Company historically having experienced losses, the primary source of liquidity has been raising capital through debt and equity offerings, as described below.
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Debt
 
On April 17, 2020, and in subsequent April closings, the Company entered into a Secured Convertible Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement (the “April SPA”) with thirty
three investors (the “Purchasers”) pursuant to which the Company received an aggregate of $2,842,695 in gross proceeds through the sale to the Purchasers of Secured
Convertible Promissory Notes (the “April Secured Notes”) and warrants (the “April Warrants”) to purchase shares of common stock of the Company (the “April Offering”).
The proceeds of the April Offering will be used for working capital and general corporate purposes. The April Offering resulted in the issuance of April Secured Notes to
Purchasers in an aggregate principal amount of $3,842,695. This sum included the issuance by the Company to FWHC Bridge, LLC (the “Investor) of an April Secured Note in
the amount of $1,000,000 to amend and supersede the A&R Note (see below “Short-term Notes, Related Parties”) previously issued by the Company to the Investor on April 9,
2020. The Investor is an affiliate of FWHC Holdings, LLC, a pre-existing shareholder of the Company, which served as lead investor in the Company’s recent Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock Offering. Additionally, in connection with the April Offering, the Company entered into an amendment with the Investor with respect to the
outstanding 12% Senior Secured Convertible Note due September 30, 2020, which was originally issued in 2018 and assumed in the Merger and purchased by the Investor
from its original holder, George Hawes, on March 27, 2020 (the “Hawes Note”). The Hawes Notes had a principal amount of $424,615 as of March 31, 2020. The amendment
to the Hawes Note eliminated the requirement that the Company make monthly payments of accrued interest.
 
As part of the April Offering, the holders of certain existing warrants issued by the Company which contained anti-dilution price protection entered into agreements terminating
all anti-dilution price protection in their warrants. The Company intends to implement a one-time reduction of the exercise price of such warrants to be equal to the price per
share at which shares of preferred stock are offered for purchase at the Qualified Financing once that price has been established.
 
The short-term notes, related parties, as of March 31, 2020 totaling $2,135,000 is comprised of loans made to the Company during 2019, by Horne Management, LLC,
controlled by Chief Executive Officer, William E. Horne aggregating $1,635,000 and a Note in the amount of $500,000 from the Investor. On April 17, 2020, Mr. Horne agreed
to convert the notes plus accrued interest owed to Horne Management, LLC, at the time of the Qualified Offering, into 4,368,278 shares of common stock and a ten-year
warrant to purchase up to an equivalent number of shares of the Company’s common stock at the Qualified Offering price of $0.014.
 
On September 11, 2020, the right to participate in the registered rights offering (Registration No. 333-239629) of the Company expired. Pursuant to the rights offering, on
September 24, 2020, the Company issued (i) 15,235,381 shares of its Series A preferred stock at a price of $0.014 per share to holders of its common stock who validly
exercised their subscription rights prior to the expiration time and (ii) 203,049,643 shares of its Series A preferred stock to the standby purchasers as part of the standby
commitment. The rights offering, including the standby component, resulted in gross proceeds to the Company of $3,055,985. While the rights offering expired on September
11, 2020, it was not consummated until September 24, 2020 while logistical closing conditions including the calculation and clearance of funds were being processed.
 
In addition, on September 24, 2020, the Company issued an aggregate of 323,844,416 shares of its Series A preferred stock to the holders of outstanding promissory notes in
the aggregate principal amount and accrued interest of $4,483,617. The notes were converted pursuant to a mandatory conversion triggered by the completion of the rights
offering. Such shares were issued under an exemption from registration in reliance on Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act. The original notes were issued in reliance on
Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.
 
On April 1, 2021, the Company, entered into a Secured Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (the “April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement”) with five (5) investors (the
“Holders”). Pursuant to the terms of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, the Company sold promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $2,575,000 maturing
on March 31, 2022 with an annual interest rate of 8%. The Notes are convertible into shares of Common Stock at a discount of 20% to the price paid for such New Securities in
the next round of financing that meets the definition of Qualified Financing as defined in the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement. The Notes are secured by the assets of the
Company under a security agreement with the Holders. The lead investor of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, FWHC Bridge, LLC, provided $1,500,000 of the total
amount to the Company. FWHC Bridge, LLC is an affiliated entity of FWHC, LLC, which is a principal stockholder and related party of the Company. An additional affiliate
of FWHC, LLC provided an additional $25,000 as part of the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement.
 
On October 14, 2021, H-Cyte, Inc. (the “Company”) entered into the Second Closing Bring Down Agreement (the “October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement”) whereby the five
(5) investors who had entered into the April 2021 Note Purchase Agreement purchased new notes in the Company in the aggregate principal amount of $750,000. The Notes are
due and payable on March 31, 2022 and bear interest at an annual rate of 8%. The Notes are convertible into shares of Common Stock at a discount of 20% to the price paid for
such New Securities in the next financing that meets the definition of a Qualified Financing as defined in the Note Purchase Agreement. The Notes are secured by all of the
assets of the Company under a security agreement with the Holders. The lead investor of the October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement, FWHC Bridge, LLC, advanced $437,000
of the total amount to the Company. FWHC Bridge, LLC is an affiliated entity of FWHC, LLC, which is a principal stockholder and related party of the Company. An
additional affiliate of FWHC, LLC provided an additional $7,500 as part of the October 2021 Note Purchase Agreement.
 
Interest expense is being accreted to the principal balance using the effective interest method. For the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2021, the Company
recorded interest expense of $30,445 for related party convertible notes payable and $20,962 for convertible notes payable and $59,665 for related party convertible notes
payable and $41,080 for convertible notes payable, respectively.
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Equity
 
On September 11, 2020, the right to participate in the registered rights offering (Registration No. 333-239629) of the Company expired. Pursuant to the rights offering, on
September 24, 2020, the Company issued (i) 15,235,381 shares of its Series A preferred stock at a price of $0.014 per share to holders of its common stock who validly
exercised their subscription rights prior to the expiration time and (ii) 203,049,643 shares of its Series A preferred stock to the standby purchasers as part of the standby
commitment. The rights offering, including the standby component, resulted in gross proceeds to the Company of $3,055,985. While the rights offering expired on September
11, 2020, it was not consummated until September 24, 2020 while logistical closing conditions including the calculation and clearance of funds were being processed.
 
On September 24, 2020, the Company issued an aggregate of 323,844,416 Preferred A shares to holders of outstanding promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount,
accrued interest, and conversion of certain warrants totaling $4,483,617. The notes were converted pursuant to mandatory conversion triggered by the completion of the rights
offering. Such shares were issued under an exemption from registration in reliance on Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act. The original notes were issued in reliance on
Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. As a result of their participation in the backstop portion of the rights offering and the conversion of their promissory notes, FWHC
Holdings, LLC became beneficial owners of approximately 61% of the Company’s outstanding common stock. This percentage includes shares owned by FWHC Bridge, LLC
and FWHC Bridge Friends, LLC who have indicated that they are part of a group with FWHC Holdings, LLC.
 
Working Capital Deficit
 
Working capital as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 is summarized as follows:
 
  As Of  
  September 30, 2021   December 31, 2020  
Current Assets  $ 458,272   1,757,202 
Current Liabilities   4,729,248   2,892,686 
Working Capital Deficit  $ (4,270,976)   (1,135,484)
 
Cash Flows
 
Cash activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 is summarized as follows:
 
  Nine Months Ended September 30,  
  2021   2020  
Cash used in operating activities  $ (3,988,115)   (5,461,140)
Cash used in investing activities   (7,832)   (2,285)
Cash provided by financing activities   2,662,515   7,476,576 
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash  $ (1,333,432)   2,013,151 
 
As of September 30, 2021, the Company had approximately $307,000 of cash on hand.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Regulation S-K Item 303(a)(4) during the periods presented, investments in special-purpose
entities or undisclosed borrowings or debt. Additionally, we are not a party to any derivative contracts or synthetic leases.
 
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
 
Not applicable to smaller reporting companies.
 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in reports filed under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the specified time periods and accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal accounting officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure.
 
The Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act) as of September 30, 2021. In designing and evaluating the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures,
management recognizes that disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired
objectives, and the Company necessarily is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure controls and procedures.
 
Based on such evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of September 30, 2021, the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were not as effective as desired because of the material weakness in its internal control over financial reporting as discussed below.
 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. In its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2021, the Company determined that internal control deficiencies relating to a lack of segregation of duties still exist.
Management believes these deficiencies mainly relate to the Company employing a limited number of accounting and finance personnel. The aggregation of these deficiencies
is considered to be a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting.
 
In light of the conclusion that the Company’s internal disclosure controls were ineffective as of September 30, 2021, it has applied additional procedures and processes as
necessary to ensure the reliability of financial reporting in regard to this quarterly report. Accordingly, the Company believes, based on its knowledge, that: (i) this quarterly
report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; and (ii) the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly
report, fairly present in all material respects our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows as of and for the periods presented in this annual report.
 
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
 
During the nine months ended September 30, 2021, the Company has adopted and began to implement a written remediation plan which includes continuing to use external
consultants for technical accounting matters, incremental formal education for the accounting and finance group, implementing a number of new entity and process level
controls and installing a new accounting software system. Management believes these actions will help remediate internal control deficiencies related to the Company’s
financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act).
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PART II – OTHER INFORMATION
 

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
 
The Company is involved in a lawsuit with Sinclair Broadcast Group, Inc. (Sinclair) which was filed on September 8, 2020 in the Circuit Court for the Thirteenth Judicial
Circuit in and for Hillsborough County, Florida. Sinclair has filed suit alleging breach of contract for advertising services in the amount of approximately $75,000 plus interest
and costs. The Company has retained legal counsel for its defense against the suit.
 
The Company is involved in a lawsuit with ITN Networks, LLC (ITN) which was filed on July 22, 2021 in the Circuit Court for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit in and for
Hillsborough County, Florida. ITN has filed suit alleging breach of contract for advertising services in the amount of approximately $75,000 plus interest and costs. The
Company has retained legal counsel for its defense against the suit.
 
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.
 
We are a smaller reporting company as defined by 17 CFR 229.10(f)(1). Thus, we are not required to provide information under this item.
 
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS.
 
None.
 
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES.
 
None.
 
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.
 
Not applicable.
 
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION.
 
Not applicable.
 
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.
 
The exhibits listed in the accompanying Exhibit Index are filed, furnished or incorporated by reference as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.
 
Date: November 12, 2021
 
 H-CYTE, INC
   
 By: /s/ Tanya Rhodes
  Tanya Rhodes

  Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

   
 By: /s/ Jeremy Daniel
  Jeremy Daniel

  
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
 

31.1  Section 302 Certification of Principal Executive Officer*
31.2  Section 302 Certification of Principal Financial Officer*
32.1  Section 906 Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer***
101.INS  XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are imbedded within the Inline XBRL

document
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document **
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document **
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document **
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document **
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document **
 
* Filed herewith.
  
** Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T adopted by the SEC, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for

purposes of Section 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise are not
subject to liability under these sections.

  
*** This certification is being furnished solely to accompany this Quarterly Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, and it is not being filed for purposes of Section 18 of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless
of any general incorporation language in such filing.
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EXHIBIT 31.1

 
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

 
I, Tanya Rhodes, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 of H-CYTE, Inc.;
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light

of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,

results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  
 (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

   
 (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

   
 (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
   
 (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

   
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors

and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  
 (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely

affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
   
 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
 
Date: November 12, 2021 /s/ Tanya Rhodes
 Tanya Rhodes,
 Chief Executive Officer
 
 



 
EXHIBIT 31.2

 
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(a) UNDER
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

 
I, Jeremy Daniel, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 of H-CYTE, Inc.;
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light

of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,

results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
  
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  
 (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

   
 (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

   
 (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
   
 (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

   
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors

and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  
 (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely

affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
   
 (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial

reporting.
 
Date: November 12, 2021 /s/ Jeremy Daniel
 Jeremy Daniel,
 Chief Financial Officer
 
 



 
EXHIBIT 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) UNDER
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AND SECTION 1350 OF

CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18 OF THE UNITED STATES CODE
 

Each of the undersigned, Tanya Rhodes and Jeremy Daniel, certifies pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of
Title 18 of the United States Code, that (1) this quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2021, of H-CYTE, Inc. (the “Company”) fully complies with
the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and (2) the information contained in this report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: November 12, 2021
 
 /s/ Tanya Rhodes
 Tanya Rhodes,
 Chief Executive Officer
  
 /s/ Jeremy Daniel
 Jeremy Daniel,
 Chief Financial Officer
 
 

 
 


